
 

 

Assistant Director, Governance and 
 

Monitoring 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
Governance and Democratic Services 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for Steve Copley 
 

Email: steve.copley@kirklees.uk 
 

Tuesday 17 January 2017 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Personnel Committee 
 

The Personnel Committee will meet in the Leadership Meeting Room  - 1st 
Floor, Civic Centre 3, Huddersfield, HD1 2TG at 9.00 am on Wednesday 25 
January 2017. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Assistant Director of Legal, Governance and Monitoring 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

The Personnel Committee members are:- 
 

 
When a Personnel Committee member cannot be at the meeting another member can attend in 
their place from the list below:- 
 

Substitutes Panel 
 
Conservative 
B Armer 
D Bellamy 
L Holmes 
B McGuin 
K Sims

Green 
K Allison 
A Cooper

Independent 
C Greaves

Labour 
G Asif 
F Fadia 
E Firth 
C Scott 
M Sokhal 
S Ullah

Liberal Democrat 
R Eastwood 
J Lawson 
A Marchington 
L Wilkinson 

 
 
 

Member 
Councillor David Sheard (Chair) 
Councillor Shabir Pandor 
Councillor Martyn Bolt 
Councillor David Hall 
Councillor Terry Lyons 
Councillor Nigel Patrick 
Councillor Nicola Turner 
Councillor Peter McBride 
Councillor Graham Turner 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
 
 
  Pages 

 
 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 

This is where Councillors who are attending as substitutes will say 
for whom they are attending. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 17 
November 2016. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

1 - 6 

 

3:   Interests 
 

The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

7 - 8 

 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private. 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

5:   Public Question Time 
 

The Committee will hear any questions from the general public. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

6:   Member Question Time 
 

To consider questions from Councillors. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

7:   Deputation/Petitions 
 

The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public.  
 
A deputation is where up to five people can attend the meeting and 
make a presentation on some particular issue of concern. A member of 
the public can also hand in a petition at the meeting but that petition 
should relate to something on which the body has powers and 
responsibilities. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

8:   Returning Officer and Responsibilities for National 
Elections and Referenda 
 

To consider a recommendation to correct the existing approach of 
consolidating the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees relating to 
national elections and referenda into the salary of the Chief 
Executive. 
 
Contact: Adrian Lythgo – 01484 221000 

 
 

9 - 12 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

9:   Exclusion of the Public 
 

To resolve that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

10:   Update on Human Resources and Industrial Relations 
and Trade Union Relationships in the New Council 
 

To receive an update on developments in the period since the 
Personnel Committee on 17 November 2016. 
 
Contact: Rosemary Gibson – 01484 221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

11:   Succession planning and managing change 
 

To receive an update on developments in the period since the 
Personnel Committee on 17 November 2016. 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Lythgo 01484-221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

13 - 20 

 

12:   Arrangements for interim capacity in senior 
management 
 

To consider the arrangements for the post of Strategic Director for 
Economy and Infrastructure in 2017/18. 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Lythgo 01484-221000 

 

21 - 24 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

13:   Health and social care arrangements 
 

To consider the arrangements for the work of the Strategic Director 
for Adults and Health and his roles with Kirklees Council and the 
North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group in 2017/18. 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Lythgo 01484-221000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

25 - 36 

 
 



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Steve Copley 
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 17th November 2016 
 
Present: Councillor David Sheard (Chair) 
 Councillor Shabir Pandor 

Councillor Terry Lyons 
Councillor Nicola Turner 
Councillor Peter McBride 
Councillor Graham Turner 
Councillor Bill Armer 

  
Apologies: Councillor David Hall 

Councillor Nigel Patrick 
  
In attendance:  
  
Observers: Councillor Julie Stewart-Turner 

Councillor John Taylor 
 

 
1 Membership of the Committee 

 
Apologies for absence were noted on behalf of Councillors Martyn Bolt, David Hall and 
Nigel Patrick. 
 
Councillors Bill Armer and John Taylor substituted for Councillors David Hall and Nigel 
Patrick. 
 
Members of the Committee also agreed that Councillor Julie Stewart Turner should be 
involved in today’s meeting because of her involvement in the interviews for the Strategic 
Directors and Service Directors (See item 10 below). The Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny has been invited to “observe” the interviews. 

 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the Personnel Committee meeting on 19 September 2016 were approved. 

 
 

3 Interests 
 
No interests were declared. 

 
 

4 Admission of the Public 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Personnel Committee -  17 November 2016 
 

2 
 

Members resolved to consider items 9 and 10 in private session, as they contain exempt 
information. The details and reasons are set out at the start of each item. 

 
 

5 Public Question Time 
 
No questions were received. 
 
 

6 Member Question Time 
 
No questions were received. 

 
 

7 Deputation/Petitions 
 
No deputations or petitions were received. 

 
 

8 Update on Human Resources and Industrial Relations and Trade Union 
Relationships in the New Council 
 
(Exempt information relating to consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations 
and negotiations, in connection with a labour relations matter arising between the authority 
or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority. The 
need to maintain confidentiality around negotiations with the trade unions outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information) 
 
Further to the Personnel Committee on 19 September 2016, the Committee received a 
verbal update from Jacqui Gedman and Rosemary Gibson on the progress being made in 
the discussions with the trade unions to try to develop the working arrangements between 
the management and trade unions in 2016/17. 
 
The report highlighted:- 
 
- The progress made in the discussions between the management and trade union sides to-
date 
 
- The trade unions and their agreement to adopt and use e-mail in their communications 
with the management side from 21 November 2016 onwards, following a recent pilot period, 
and subject to some guiding principles and parameters. Progress to be checked and shared 
with the Personnel Committee in due course.  
 
- The progress made in the discussions to-date about the proposal to introduce some 
changes by 1 April 2017, as proposed and supported at the Personnel Committee (14 July), 
which will see the total number of trade union representatives for UNISON, GMB and 
UNITE, plus the formal time off that is allocated to them for their trade union duties, being 
based on some new ratios based on 1:1000 for the total number of members that they have 
working in Kirklees in 2016/17. Further details on the development and implementation of 
this proposal – or a slightly revised proposal – will be shared with the Personnel Committee 
in due course.  
 

Page 2



Personnel Committee -  17 November 2016 
 

3 
 

- Questions raised by the trade unions about the appeal process, and the removal of the 
former process which allowed appeals to be escalated to a member appeal panel for 
determination. It was noted that representatives from the management and trade union will 
review these issues in an attempt to find a way forward. 
 
RESOLVED: - That the Committee agrees to receive this progress report, and ask for a 
further progress at the next meeting. 

 
 

9 Succession Planning and Managing Change 
 
(Exempt information relating to particular employees. The public interest in maintaining the 
exemption, which would protect the rights of the individual under the Data Protection Act 
1988, outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information and providing greater 
openness in the council’s decision making) 
 
 
Following a report at the Personnel Committee on 19 September 2016, Adrian Lythgo 
provided a report on progress with the process and timetable to complete the review of the 
senior management structure. The report focused on:- 
 
- The appointment, following member interviews, of the following Strategic Directors from 1 
April 2017 
 

- Sarah Callaghan – Strategic Director for Children and Families 
- Richard Parry – Strategic Director for Adults and Heath 
- Jacqui Gedman – Strategic Director for Economy and infrastructure  
- Jacqui Gedman - Deputy Chief Executive – Effective from 9 November 2016 
   onwards 

 
- The Strategic Director posts which will not come in to being until the planned and full 
implementation of the structure in April 2017. Cllr Sheard also asked the Committee to note 
that the member interview panel had highlighted differential and specific development 
needs in each case reflecting the change in nature of the Strategic Director roles from those 
required by the candidates for their existing roles.  
 
- The feedback and questions raised in the consultation exercise with the Assistant 
Directors about the creation of the new Service Director posts  
 
- The proposed process and timescales to fill the Service Director posts from December 
2016 onwards 
 
- The need in the future to consider the roles of senior managers in completing the design of 
the overall management structure of the council. 
 
- The specific costs associated with the secondment for one Director, as agreed by the 
Chief Executive in accordance with the delegation from the Personnel Committee, to 
implement the senior management review.  
  
Adrian Lythgo answered questions on the content of the report, along with its appendices. 
This provided more information on:- 
 
- The proposed senior management structure of the council 
 

Page 3



Personnel Committee -  17 November 2016 
 

4 
 

- Information of the role profiles of the Service Director posts  
 
- A summary of the feedback from the consultation with the current Assistant Directors 
about the proposed structure and the roles and responsibilities of the new Service Directors. 
 
The Committee also received a deputation consisting of Paul Holmes, UNISON, and Lyle 
Singleton, UNITE, and also received a copy of a letter and report from Paul Holmes, which 
explained the reasons why, following the adoption of the collective agreement by the 
management and trade union sides, Paul Holmes believed that the trade unions should 
have been invited to nominate a “trade union observer” to observe the member panels for 
the interviews for the Strategic Directors and Service Directors. The question had arisen 
prior to the recent interviews for the posts of Strategic Director and had been determined by 
the member interview panel on 9 November 2016.  
 
Adrian Lythgo explained that he had asked for the matter to be brought direct to the 
Personnel Committee for consideration, as an exception to using the process of the Central 
Negotiating Team and/or Employee Relations Sub Committee, because UNISON felt that 
those who would normally deal with these issues were involved in the decisions that had 
been taken to date. Adrian Lythgo also made it clear that the management side did not 
necessarily agree with this view.  
 
Adrian Lythgo clarified that the Personnel Committee was being asked to consider the 
deputation due to the specific and unique circumstances of the points raised.  
 
Jacqui Gedman, on behalf of the management side, responded to these issues raised in the 
deputation.    
 
Members of the Committee discussed the issues with Paul Holmes, Jacqui Gedman and 
Adrian Lythgo, before asking everyone to leave the meeting in order that the committee 
could make a decision in private.  
 
Following on from all of the above, Adrian Lythgo also reported on his plans to leave 
Kirklees Council in February 2017, and his recommendation on how the post and role of 
Chief Executive should be filled.  
 
The Personnel Committee considered the information available from the recent interviews 
for the posts of Strategic Directors and Deputy Chief Executive as part of their decision in 
determining the Council’s response.  

 
RESOLVED – That the Personnel Committee unanimously agreed to approve and support 
the following recommendations:- 
 
(1). That the appointment of the Strategic Directors from 1 April 2017 be noted, recognising 
the differential development needs for the roles, plus the appointment of Jacqui Gedman to 
the position of Deputy Chief Executive from 9 November 2016.  
 
(2). That, having considered the feedback from the consultation process with the current 
Assistant Directors, the Service Director role descriptions be agreed as a basis for 
conducting interviews to those posts. Members of the Personnel Committee also 
acknowledged the feedback surrounding the posts of Service Director for Quality and 
Performance and Service Director for Customer Transformation and Public Affairs, but 
agreed that both of these posts should be advertised and filled as planned. The Committee 
agreed the need to maintain capacity at a Service Director level.  
 

Page 4



Personnel Committee -  17 November 2016 
 

5 
 

(3). That the approach to recruiting to vacant Service Director posts is approved, namely, 
internal advertisements, followed by external advertisements for any posts that cannot be 
filled.  
 
(4). That the legal requirements under regulation 10 of the maternity legislation in relation to 
redundancy that are likely to be applicable to one of the candidates are noted.  
 
(5). That, in response to the deputation and representations made by UNISON at today’s 
meeting, the Committee unanimously agreed that there should be no “trade union 
observers” at  any member panel interviews for the posts of Chief Executive, Strategic 
Director or Service Director. 
 
(6). That, following on from (5) above, Jacqui Gedman and Rosemary Gibson be asked to 
provide a report for the next Personnel Committee on the procedures for dealing with 
disputes between representatives of the management and trade union sides in 2017/18.  
 
(7). That the plans of Adrian Lythgo, Chief Executive, to leave the service of Kirklees 
Council in February 2017, be noted 
 
(8). That the post of Chief Executive be offered to Jacqui Gedman, the current Deputy Chief 
Executive,  on an acting up basis for a 12 month period following the departure of Adrian 
Lythgo. 
 
(9). That the Council be recommended to approve the appointment described in (8) above 
and this officer becoming the head of the paid service (including the roles of Electoral 
Registration Officer and Returning Officer) 

 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

CarolineBateman
Typewritten Text

CarolineBateman_1
Typewritten Text

CarolineBateman_2
Typewritten Text
Personnel Committee



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 8



    
 
Name of meeting:   Personnel Committee  
Date:     25 January 2017  
 
Title of report:  (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer Fees  

– National Elections and Referendums  
 

Is it likely to result in spending 
or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on 
two or more electoral wards? 

No 

Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan? 
 

Not Applicable 

Is it eligible for “call in” by 
Scrutiny? 

Not Applicable 

Date signed off by Director & 
name 
 
Is it signed off by the 
Assistant Director - Financial 
Management, Risk, IT and 
Performance? 
 
Is it signed off by the 
Assistant Director – Legal, 
Governance & Monitoring? 

Adrian Lythgo – insert date 
  
 
Debbie Hogg – Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
Julie Muscroft – insert date 
 
 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Not Applicable 

 
Electoral wards affected:  None 
Ward councillors consulted: No 
Public or private:   Public 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 

1.1 To consider a recommendation to correct the existing contractual approach of 
consolidating the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees relating to national 
elections and referenda into the Chief Executives salary, to treat them in future as 
separate payments.   

 
2. Key points 

 

2.1 The Representation of the People Act 1983 (Section 27(1)) has the effect of making 
the office of (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer totally distinct from the role of Chief 
Executive and the provision serves to emphasise the independence of this role. 

 

2.2 The role of (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer at Parliamentary, District, Parish and 
Police Commissioner Elections and at any referendum held in the Kirklees area has 
a personal responsibility outside the jurisdiction of the Council and this personal 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/ForwardPlan/forwardplan.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/scrutiny/Scrutiny.asp
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/cabinet/cabinet.asp
http://www2.kirklees.gov.uk/you-kmc/kmc-howcouncilworks/councillors/yourcouncillors.asp


responsibility means that the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer is answerable to the 
courts as an independent statutory officer. 

 

2.3 The (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer is responsible for ensuring the proper conduct 
of an election/referendum in accordance with the law; this includes responsibility for 
all expenditure incurred for the purpose of conducting the election.   

 

The Government is responsible for funding all national elections/referenda. In 
practice the Government provides advance funding (75%) for services/supplies and 
for (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees. The total amount allocated to each voting 
area is calculated by the Government prior to the electoral event and is based upon 
a range of factors including previous expenditure, electorate size; postal vote 
numbers; inflation and combination with other polls etc.  

 

The Council is responsible for funding local elections; however, when a local 
election is combined with a national election any costs attributable to both elections 
is shared.  

 

Following the election/referendum the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer is required 
to submit a claim and supporting evidence to the Government to account for 
expenditure.  All claims are audited by the Cabinet Office - Election Claims Unit. On 
settlement, additional funding will be provided by the Government if the spend is in 
excess of the advance payment or if the total spend is less than the advance 
payment, money will be paid back to the Government by the (Acting) (Local) 
Returning Officer. 

 

2.4 The performance of the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer is monitored by the 
Electoral Commission and (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees can be withheld or 
reduced, if after investigation his/her performance be assessed as inadequate. The 
Council does not have a role in assessing the performance of the (Acting) (Local) 
Returning Officer. 

 

2.5 Traditionally a proportion (46.5%) of these (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees 
are paid back into the election staffing budget or for some national 
elections/referenda as a direct payment to the Deputy Returning Officer (with full 
delegated powers) (DRO), who is the Electoral Services Manager who works under 
direction of the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer having the main responsibility for 
the planning, co-ordination and administration of these electoral events. At present 
the remaining 53.5% of these fees are paid back into the Council’s budget for 
national elections/referenda, currently specified as being part of the Chief 
Executive’s contract. 

 

2.6 Precedent for the existing contractual approach was set by a previous Chief 
Executive and this was carried forward to the current Chief Executive (Adrian 
Lythgo) on his appointment.  

 

2.7 The decisions of a (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer may, on an election petition, be 
reviewed by the High Court.  Where an election petition complains of the conduct of 
the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer, he is deemed to be a respondent to that 
petition (not the Council) and may, as a party to a petition, be personally liable for 
costs should the court so determine. 

 Page 10



2.8 The current approach of consolidating the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees 
into the Chief Executives role/salary presents an ambiguous situation in terms of 
provision of any clear demarcation of the role and responsibility of the (Acting) 
(Local) Returning Officer and those of the Chief Executive. It effectively risks 
making the Council responsible for the conduct of the election. This is not the 
intention of primary legislation. 

 
2.9 The administration and combination of elections/referenda has become more and 

more complex and the frequency of elections/referenda has increased. Any cross 
constituency boundaries created as a result of the on-going boundary review will 
create further complexities. Elections and referenda are now often subject to 
intensive scrutiny by a range of stakeholders and as such the potential for election 
petitions may also increase.    

 
2.10 The Council has no jurisdiction or responsibility over the running of elections. The 

factors detailed above may have created an environment which presents risk to the 
Council; in respect of its ability to demonstrate independence and impartiality from 
the role of (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer should an election petition be 
submitted.      

 

3. Implications for the Council 

 
3.1   The reversal of the existing approach will correct the contractual irregularity and 

eliminate any associated risk to the Council. There are no financial cost implications 
to the Council, as a result of this change.   

 
4. Consultees and their responses 
 
4.1   Sharon Salvanos, Electoral Services Manager/Deputy Returning Officer:  
 

The impact of the recommendation in this report is that the Council will be reinforcing 
the statutorily separate nature of the administration of the election process at arm’s 
length from the Council. It will also result in the Chief Executive/Acting Chief 
Executive receiving separate election fees to their Council salary for all UK 
Parliamentary, European and non-district elections, and for any national referenda. 

 
The consolidation of national (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer fees into the Chief 
Executive’s salary is highly unusual and, in the opinion of the Electoral Services 
Manager, incorrect.  
 
The current approach creates a perception of risk to the Council; in respect of its 
ability to demonstrate separation from the role of (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer 
should the conduct of the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer be questioned or if an 
election petition be submitted. 
 
The role and responsibilities of the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer is an entirely 
separate employment and is distinct from the duties as an employee of the Council 
and as such could not have been evaluated as part of the existing Chief Executives 
grade nor should it be incorporated into the Chief Executive’s role or remuneration. 
The employment contract should only confirm that the Chief Executive will hold the 
statutory independent position of the (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer.  

 
 We are not aware of any other Local Authority, certainly within West or South 

Yorkshire that has taken this approach to national (Acting) (Local) Returning Officer 
fees.  There are some differences across the region in that some (Acting) (Local) Page 11



Returning Officers also receive fees for their role as Returning Officer for district and 
parish elections. The Returning Officer for the Kirklees voting area receives no fee for 
district or parish elections. 

 
5. Next steps 
 
5.1 Agree to the recommendation and the revised arrangements to be separated from 

the contract of employment for the Acting Chief Executive and any future 
appointments to the role of Chief Executive.  
 

6. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

6.1   That Council approve the recommendation in this report, which is that: 
 

 In future the Chief Executive/Acting Chief Executive will receive separate election fees 
to their Council salary for all national elections and/or referendums.  

 

 A proportion (46.5%) of which will be paid back into the election staffing budget or as a 
direct payment to the Deputy Returning Officer (with full delegated powers) as detailed 
in  2.5 above. 

 
This is for the reasons explained in the report in particular relating to the separation of the 
two roles. 
 
 
7. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations 

 
7.1   Not applicable 
 
8. Contact officer and relevant papers 

 
Adrian Lythgo 
Chief Executive 
Adrian.lythgo@kirklees.gov.uk 
 
9. Assistant Director Responsible 

 
Not applicable 

Page 12

mailto:Adrian.lythgo@kirklees.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Interests
	8 Returning Officer and Responsibilities for National Elections and Referenda
	11 Succession planning and managing change
	12 Arrangements for interim capacity in senior management
	13 Health and social care arrangements



